
MEETING: Cabinet
DATE: Wednesday, 18 October 2017
TIME: 10.00 am
VENUE: Reception Room, Barnsley Town Hall

AGENDA

1.  Declaration of pecuniary and non-pecuniary interests  

2.  Leader - Call-in of Cabinet decisions  

Minutes

3.  Minutes of the previous meeting held on 4th October, 2017 (Cab.18.10.2017/3)  
(Pages 3 - 6)

Items for Noting

4.  Decisions of Cabinet Spokespersons (Cab.18.10.2017/4)  

Petitions

5.  Petitions received under Standing Order 44 (Cab.18.10.2017/5)  

Items for Decision/Recommendation to Council

Leader

6.  Emerging Local Authority Mutual Insurance Arrangements (Cab.18.10.2017/6)  
(Pages 7 - 10)

Place Spokesperson

7.  Incorporation of Transport for the North as a Sub-National Transport Body 
(Cab.18.10.2017/7)  (Pages 11 - 16)

To: Chair and Members of Cabinet:-

Councillors Houghton CBE (Chair), Andrews BEM, Bruff, Cheetham, Gardiner, 
Howard, Miller and Platts

Cabinet Support Members:

Councillors Franklin, Frost, David Griffin, Lamb, Pourali and Saunders

Chair of Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Chair of Audit Committee

Diana Terris, Chief Executive
Rachel Dickinson, Executive Director People
Matt Gladstone, Executive Director Place

Public Document Pack



Wendy Lowder, Executive Director Communities
Julia Burrows, Director Public Health
Andrew Frosdick, Executive Director Core Services
Alison Brown, Service Director Human Resources
Michael Potter, Service Director Business Improvement and Communications
Neil Copley, Service Director Finance
Katie Rogers, Communications and Marketing Business Partner
Anna Marshall, Scrutiny Officer
Ian Turner, Service Director, Council Governance

Corporate Communications and Marketing
Labour Group Room – 1 copy

Please contact Ian Turner on 01226 773421 or email governance@barnsley.gov.uk

Tuesday, 10 October 2017



MEETING: Cabinet
DATE: Wednesday, 4 October 2017
TIME: 10.00 am
VENUE: Reception Room, Barnsley Town Hall

1

MINUTES 

Present Councillors Houghton CBE (Chair), Andrews BEM, 
Bruff, Cheetham, Gardiner, Miller and Platts 

Members in Attendance: Councillors Franklin, Lamb, Saunders, Sheard
 

88. Declaration of pecuniary and non-pecuniary interests 

There were no declarations of pecuniary or non-pecuniary interests.

89. Leader - Call-in of Cabinet decisions 

The Leader reported that no decisions from the previous meeting held on 20th  
September, 2017 had been called in.

90. Minutes of the previous meeting held on 20th September, 2017 
(Cab.04.10.2017/3) 

The minutes of the meeting held on 20th September, 2017 were taken as read and 
signed by the Chair as a correct record.

91. Decisions of Cabinet Spokespersons (Cab.04.10.2017/4) 

The Record of Decisions taken by Cabinet Spokespersons under delegated powers 
during the week ending 29th September, 2017 were noted.

92. Petitions received under Standing Order 44 (Cab.04.10.2017/5) 

RESOLVED that the report notifying the receipt of the following petition be noted and 
the recommended actions for responding to it be endorsed, namely:-

(a) Containing the signatures of 180 signatories, in respect of road safety and 
traffic concerns at Sacred Heart Catholic Primary School in Goldthorpe.

The Council’s Road Safety team will contact the school to discuss intervention 
measures available from the Council and South Yorkshire Safer Roads 
Partnership to educate and promote road safety to the children, parents and 
teachers. This will require support from the school to be effective. 

A ‘preliminary’ footway assessment has been carried out under the service 
priority assessment procedures to convert the verge into footway and 
achieved a ‘Medium’ priority. This request will be considered for inclusion in a 
future programme along with all ‘High’ and ‘Medium’ priority requests. 

Page 3

Cab.18.10.2017/3



2

The request for a ‘one way system’ and ‘drop off point’ has been assessed 
under the traffic measures service priority assessment procedures. This 
achieved a ‘Low’ priority and will not be taken forward as a scheme.

Core Services Spokesperson

93. Better Barnsley - Market Gate Bridge - Business Case (Cab.04.10.2017/6) 

The meeting noted that, when completed, the Market Gate Bridge would be a Council 
asset and therefore the Council would be liable for maintenance of the bridge.

RESOLVED:-

(i) that the business case for the Better Barnsley Market Gate Bridge project, as 
set out in the report now submitted, be approved;

(ii) that the Executive Director, Core Services be authorised to enter into a 
funding and partnering agreements with Network Rail;

(iii) that the Executive Director, Core Services be authorised to implement all 
necessary statutory and legal approvals required to deliver the project; and

(iv) that resources totalling £0.580m be released from the monies earmarked as 
part of the 2020 New Starts Capital Programme to fund the design and 
architects and structural engineers’ fees associated with the construction of 
the bridge together with associated traffic and pedestrian monitoring, with the 
release of the remaining funding being subject to approval of the final design 
and cost estimate for the project.

94. Business Rates - Local Discretionary Relief Scheme - Revaluation Support 
2017/18 - 2020/21 (Cab.04.10.2017/7) 

RESOLVED that approval be given to the Business Rates Local Discretionary Relief 
Scheme, as detailed at Section 4.4 of the report now submitted.

Place Spokesperson

95. 2017/18 Highways Capital Programme (Cab.04.10.2017/8) 

RESOLVED:-

(i) that the 2017/18 Highways Capital Programme, as set out in Appendices 1, 2 
and 3 of the report submitted, be approved, and that the Service Director, 
Environment and Transport be authorised to implement these schemes;

(ii) that the Service Director, Environment and Transport be authorised, in 
conjunction with the Cabinet Spokesperson for Place, to vary the programmes 
within the overall budget;

(iii) that the Service Director, Environment and Transport be authorised to:-

Page 4



3

 obtain tenders for any works as necessary, and appoint the successful 
tenderer on the basis of the most economically advantageous tender;

 adopt the HMEP principle of collaboration and utilise collaborative 
procurement to engage external consultants to undertake work which 
cannot be undertaken in-house or secure the services of contractors or 
consultants via Regional Alliances where appropriate;

 appoint other external consultants and contractors as appropriate, within 
the current procurement rules;

(iv) that, in the event that the Planned Maintenance budget and Integrated 
Transport budget for 2017/18 is not fully expended, the value of any 
committed works be rolled forward in addition to next year’s planned 
allocations;

(v) that the Town Centre Projects Plan of public realm improvements (approved in 
2015/16) be absorbed into the responsibilities of the Town Centre Board;

(vi) that Members note the proposed change in approach to the cyclical 
maintenance of road gullies; and

(vii) that Members note the highlighted potential risks associated with the future 
funding for delivering the highways function.

…………………………….
Chair

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



1

BARNSLEY METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL

This matter is not a Key Decision within the Council’s definition and has not been 
included in the relevant Forward Plan

REPORT OF THE 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, CORE SERVICES

TO CABINET ON 18TH OCTOBER, 2017

EMERGING LOCAL AUTHORITY MUTUAL INSURANCE ARRANGEMENTS 

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 To gain Cabinet approval for Barnsley Council to be represented on the Founding 
Members Board of the emerging Local Authority Mutual Insurance organisation.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 Cabinet agrees to the nomination of the Cabinet Spokesperson for Core 
Services to the Founding Members Board of the emerging Local Authority 
Mutual Insurance organisation with immediate effect. 

3. INTRODUCTION

3.1 The Council has been approached by the Lead Adviser from the Local Government 
Association (LGA) regarding the development of options for a financially beneficial 
alternative to the conventional insurance market products and services that are 
available to Local Authorities.  

3.2 The LGA is now taking the lead on this project, and it is their wish to work with a 
small number of leading authorities to consider developing a new mutual insurance 
organisation for local government, which will be designed to offer comparable or 
better protection to LGA members, at a reduced cost. It is envisaged that the mutual 
would be owned and controlled by its members. Essentially, a mutual insurance 
company is owned entirely by its policyholders. Any profits earned by the mutual 
would either be:
 Retained within the company to cover future losses;
 Rebated to the policyholders in the form of dividend distributions; or, 
 Used to reduce future premiums for policyholders.

3.3 Following the approach from the LGA, the Leader, Chief Executive and Service 
Director (Finance) met with the Lead Adviser from the LGA in August 2017, where it 
was agreed in principle that the Cabinet Spokesperson for Core Services would be 
Barnsley’s nomination to the Founding Members Board.

4. PROPOSAL AND JUSTIFICATION

4.1 As a founding member, the Council is not committed to participating in the scheme 
once it is operational, and it is likely that at that stage, a further Cabinet Report will 
be prepared to seek approval to join the scheme, based on an assessment of risk 
and value for money outcomes.

Page 7

Cab.18.10.2017/6



2

4.2 The Council has an exciting opportunity to participate in the development of the 
mutual business case, governance arrangements and procurement options, which 
would enable the Council to be well sighted in terms of any benefits and 
opportunities (and risks) the scheme would present when operational.

5. CONSIDERATION OF ALTERNATIVE APPROACHES

5.1 The Council may not wish to engage with the LGA regarding the developing local 
authority mutual which would mean the Council loses the opportunity to contribute 
towards the shaping and influencing of the future direction of the mutual.

6. IMPLICATIONS FOR LOCAL PEOPLE/SERVICE USERS

6.1 There are no direct implications for local people or services users at this stage. 

7. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

7.1 There are no financial implications for Cabinet to consider at this stage. As the 
mutual develops, assessments regarding value for money, robustness of the 
mutual’s underwriting arrangements, loss control arrangements and the like will be 
assessed before any decision is made to commit to the mutual as a provider of 
insurances for Barnsley Council.

8. EMPLOYEE IMPLICATIONS

8.1 There are no employee implications identified at this stage.

9. COMMUNICATIONS IMPLICATIONS

9.1 There are no communication implications identified at this stage.

10. CONSULTATIONS

10.1 It is envisaged that appropriate consultations with regional authorities, insurance 
brokers and other interested parties will be consulted with as part of the 
development of the mutual.

11. THE CORPORATE PLAN AND THE COUNCIL'S PERFORMANCE 
MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

11.1 Engaging with the developing mutual will support achievement of the council’s 
priorities, in particular the One Council priority, and the ‘innovative and managed 
risk taking’ value.  

12. PROMOTING EQUALITY, DIVERSITY AND SOCIAL INCLUSION

12.1 There are no equality, diversity or social inclusion implications identified at this 
stage 

13. TACKLING HEALTH INEQUALITIES

13.1 There are no health implications identified at this stage

Page 8



3

14. RISK MANAGEMENT ISSUES

14.1 There is currently a risk that is the Council does not engage at this state, the 
opportunity to be involved in shaping and influencing the governance arrangements 
for the mutual will be lost. 

14.2 A full risk assessment of options to the Council will be undertaken once the mutual 
has been developed to a stage where its operations, governance arrangements, 
costs and can be assessed, and reported to Cabinet for a final decision to be taken 
as to whether the Council would benefit from procuring elements of insurance from 
this new organisation. 

15. BACKGROUND PAPERS

Working Papers located in Westgate Plaza One.

Officer Contact: Adrian Hunt

Telephone No: 773119

Date:  20th September 2017

Financial Implications/Consultation

………………………………………………………..
(To be signed by senior Financial Services officer 
where no financial implications)

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



1

BARNSLEY METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL

This matter is not a Key Decision within the Council’s definition and has not been 
included in the relevant Forward Plan

JOINT REPORT OF THE
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS FOR
PLACE AND CORE SERVICES

TO CABINET ON 18 OCTOBER 2017

INCORPORATION OF TRANSPORT FOR THE NORTH AS A SUB-NATIONAL 
TRANSPORT BODY

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 The purpose of this report is for the Council as Local Highway Authority to consent 
to the making of Regulations by the Secretary of State to establish Transport for the 
North (TfN) as a Sub-National Transport Body under section 102J of the Local 
Transport Act 2008.  The consent of each Highway Authority within the area of each 
Combined Authority which is a Constituent Authority of TfN is required because the 
Regulations contain provisions giving TfN highway powers to be exercised 
concurrently with the Local Highway Authorities.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 That formal consent be given under section 102J of the Local Transport Act 
2008 to the making by the Secretary of State of Regulations to establish 
Transport for the North (TfN) as a Sub-National Transport Body and giving 
TfN concurrent highway powers with the Council.

3. INTRODUCTION/BACKGROUND

3.1 To address concerns about transport connectivity across the North, Local Transport 
Authorities and Local Enterprise Partnerships across the North of England came 
together in 2014 in partnership with the Department for Transport and the National 
Transport Agencies to form Transport for the North (TfN). Together they have 
developed an ambitious pan-northern transport strategy to drive economic growth in 
the North. The purpose of TfN is to transform the transport system of the North of 
England and the aim of TfN is to plan and deliver the improvements needed to truly 
connect the region with fast, frequent and reliable transport links, driving economic 
growth and creating a Northern Powerhouse. 

3.2 Getting transport right is central to achieving the Northern Powerhouse ambition 
which is itself central to a successful UK industrial strategy. A world class transport 
system linking towns and cities across the North will create a unified economic area, 
attracting new business, improving productivity in the North and thereby rebalancing 
the UK economy.

Page 11

Cab.18.10.2017/7



2

3.3 There has been long term underperformance of the Northern economy when 
compared with other parts of the UK. There is a significant economic performance 
gap between the North and the rest of the UK economy – a difference in income of 
£4,800 per person in 2014, compared with the national average, and £22,500 
compared with London. Having been on a downward trend since the early 2000s, 
the gap has widened since the 2008/09 recession.

3.4 Productivity accounts for the largest proportion of the ‘performance gap’, driven by 
underdeveloped skills base, under-investment by the private sector and low 
enterprise rates. This has worsened since the recession, in part due to out-
migration of skilled workers to the southern regions where employment prospects 
are better.

3.5 Poor connectivity is central to understanding the economic challenges of the North. 
There is disproportionately low investment in the North compared with London and 
other city regions across Europe. A series of studies have shown how investing in 
transport infrastructure can unlock the economic potential of the North.

3.6 The Independent Economic Review of the Northern Powerhouse shows the scale of 
the benefits to the UK of closing the productivity gap. Advances in productivity, 
driven by key sectors of digital technologies, health innovation energy and 
advanced manufacturing have the potential to transform the North of England’s 
economy adding £97 billion and 850,000 jobs by 2050.

3.7 The North has had no way of agreeing strategic priorities, with the responsibility for 
transport divided over many organisations at different geographical levels. This has 
made it hard to properly consider and prioritise the right strategic transport 
interventions to transform economic growth at the regional scale. As a result, the 
North has been unable to speak with one clearly evidenced voice to Government on 
its transport priorities in Spending Rounds or rail and road investment plans.

3.8 The ambition of TfN over time is to achieve significant devolution of transport 
responsibilities for the North of England and specifically to:-

a) Develop and deliver a multi-modal, integrated strategic transport plan that 
drives transformational economic growth in the North;

b) Set the strategic outcomes, outputs and priorities for the North of England’s 
rail infrastructure and strategic road network; and

c) Determine specifications and contracts for future rail service franchises in the 
North of England.

3.9 In October 2016 with the agreement of the Constituent Authorities set out below TfN 
submitted a proposal to the Secretary of State for Transport that TfN should be 
established as the first Sub-National Transport Body (STB) under the provisions of 
section 102E of the Local Transport Act 2008 as amended by the Cities and Local 
Government Devolution Act 2016. 

3.10 The 19 Constituent Authorities of TfN are:-

 The relevant Combined Authorities within the TfN area
 Cumbria County Council 

Page 12



3

 Lancashire County Council 
 North Yorkshire County Council 
 Blackburn with Darwen Borough Council 
 Blackpool Borough Council 
 Cheshire East Council
 Cheshire West and Chester Council 
 Warrington Borough Council 
 The Council of the City of York  
 The East Riding of Yorkshire Council
 Kingston upon Hull City Council 
 North Lincolnshire Borough Council 
 North East Lincolnshire Council.

4. TRANSPORT FOR THE NORTH – PROPOSED POWERS AND FUNCTIONS

4.1 The Proposal submitted by the Constituent Authorities requested the following 
powers and functions:-

a) To prepare a Transport Strategy for the Combined Area in accordance with 
section 102I of the Local Transport Act 2008;

b) To provide advice to the Secretary of State about the exercise of the 
transport functions in the Combined Area;

c) To be a Statutory Partner with the Secretary of State in both road and rail 
investment processes and to be responsible for setting the objectives and 
priorities for strategic road and rail investments in the Combined Area;

d) To be consulted in relation to rail franchise agreements for services to and 
from or within its area;

e) To co-manage with the Secretary of State the TransPennine Express and 
Northern Rail Franchises;

f) To co-ordinate the carrying out of specified transport functions that are 
exercisable by its different Constituent Authorities with a view to improving 
the effectiveness and efficiency of the carrying out of those functions;

g) To promote and co-ordinate road transport schemes;
h) To make proposals to the Secretary of State for the transfer of transport 

functions to TfN;
i) To make other proposals to the Secretary of State about the role and 

functions of TfN;
j) To undertake Smart Ticketing within the Combined Area;
k) To promote and oppose local or personal bills in Parliament;
l) To pay Capital Grants to support the funding and delivery of joint projects;
m) To exercise powers to construct highways and to acquire land for that 

purpose under section 8(1), 24 and 239 of the Highways Act 1980 
concurrently with local Highway Authorities.

4.2 In carrying out these functions TfN will act as a Statutory Partner with the Secretary 
of State and will take devolved responsibilities from the Secretary of State. It will 
exercise a coordinating role in relation to specified transport functions

4.3 The Proposal also contained the following key provisions:-

Page 13



4

a) All Constituent Authorities will be entitled to appoint a representative to TfN, 
such representative to normally be the Elected Mayor, Chair, Leader or 
Member with delegated responsibility for transport;

b) Decisions will be expected to be unanimous but where voting is required 
votes will be weighted in accordance with the populations of the Constituent 
Authorities;

c) Decisions in relation to the Budget, the adoption of a Transport Strategy and 
the Constitution will require a Super Majority;

d) Funding will be provided by the Secretary of State and no decision to require 
financial contributions from Constituent Authorities can be made without the 
agreement of each Authority;

e) There will be appropriate mechanisms for Scrutiny of TfN’s decisions;
f) Rail North Limited will be wholly owned by TfN;
g) A wider Partnership Board including representatives of government bodies 

and the LEPs will be set up to inform TfN’s decision making.

5. THE SECRETARY OF STATE’S RESPONSE

5.1 The Secretary of State has now formally responded to the Proposal and has 
indicated that he is minded to make Regulations creating TfN as the first Sub-
National Transport Body with the following functions:-

a) The preparation of a Northern Transport Strategy;
b) The provision of advice on the North’s priorities, as a Statutory Partner in the 

Department’s investment processes;
c) The coordination of regional transport activities, (such as smart ticketing), 

and the co-management of the TransPennine Express and Northern Rail 
franchises through the acquisition of Rail North Ltd. 

6. REGULATIONS

6.1 Regulations have now been drafted which, once passed, will confer on TfN the 
majority of the functions and powers requested in the Proposal. Before the 
Secretary of State can make the Regulations he must obtain consent to the making 
of the Regulations from each of the 19 Constituent Authorities and also consent to 
the granting of concurrent highway powers from each of the Highway Authorities 
within TfN’s area. The Authorities which are County Councils or Unitary Authorities 
are Highway Authorities but the Combined Authorities are not and in these areas 
the individual Highway Authorities are being asked to give their consent to the 
granting of highway powers within the Regulations.  A response to this request is 
required by the end of October 2017.

Page 14



5

7. HIGHWAY FUNCTIONS

7.1 The highway powers which are contained in the Regulations are firstly the following 
powers of the Secretary of State in relation to the construction of trunk roads which 
may be delegated down to TfN:-

a) Section 6(5) Highways Act 1980 (power to enter into agreements for works 
relating to trunk roads);

b) Sections 105A - 105C Highways Act 1980 (functions relating to 
environmental impact assessments);

c) Sections 239 to 240 and 246 Highways Act 1980 (powers to acquire land in 
connection with highways);

d) Section 250 Highways Act 1980 (powers relating to the acquisition of powers 
over land).

7.2 Secondly the following powers under the Highways Act 1980 are conferred on TfN 
concurrently with the local Highway Authority.-

a) Section 8(1) (power to enter agreements with local highways authorities etc 
for doing certain works);

b) Section 24(2) (power of local highway authority to construct new highways);
c) Section 25(i) (powers to enter into agreement for creation of footpath etc);
d) Section 26 (i) (compulsory powers for creation of footpaths etc);
e) Various functions in sections 239, 240, 246 and 250 relating to the 

acquisition of land for highway purposes.

7.3 Importantly, the draft Regulations provide that TfN will not be able to exercise any of 
the highway powers which they hold concurrently with the Highway Authorities 
unless the manner in which it proposes to exercise the function has been approved 
by each of the Highway Authorities through whose area the highway will pass.

7.4 There is no intention that TfN will itself become a Highway Authority and as set out 
above the Regulations make it clear that before these powers may be exercised TfN 
will need to obtain the express consent of the relevant Highway Authority to the 
manner in which the powers would be exercised. These powers would therefore 
only be exercised in circumstances where all the local Highway Authorities consider 
that there would be a benefit in TfN carrying out the work.

7.5 It is intended that before TfN exercises any transport powers or functions it holds 
concurrently with any of the Constituent Authorities or Highways Authorities within 
the TfN area, TfN will enter into a written Protocol with the Constituent Authorities or 
the local Highway Authorities covering the way in which the functions will be 
exercised.

8. THE HIGHWAYS NORTH BOARD

8.1 TfN will participate in the Highways North Board which will consist of the Members 
of TfN along with representatives of the Department for Transport and Highways 
England. The role of the Board will be to make recommendations in respect of the 
future Roads Investment Strategy and competitive major roads funding 
programmes.

Page 15



6

9. LIST OF APPENDICES

None.

10. BACKGROUND PAPERS

 Creation of TfN as a statutory body – Report approved by Sheffield City Region 
Combined Authority, 17th July 2017

 Letter from Transport for the North – September 2017
 Draft Regulations made under the Transport Act 2008.

Available for inspection in the Core Services Directorate, Town Hall, Barnsley, Tel 773421

Officer Contact: Ian Turner Telephone No: 773421 Date:  29 September 2017

Page 16


	Agenda
	3. Minutes of the previous meeting held on 4th October, 2017 (Cab.18.10.2017/3)
	6. Emerging Local Authority Mutual Insurance Arrangements (Cab.18.10.2017/6)
	7. Incorporation of Transport for the North as a Sub-National Transport Body (Cab.18.10.2017/7)

